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KLP Kommunekreditt AS is 
owned by KLP through its  
subsidiary KLP Banken AS.
Together with KLP, KLP Kommunekreditt AS has a good position in the  
market for public lending. Its presence in the market contributes to competition 
and so provides the public sector with access to low-cost long-term financing.

The aim is to be a reliable financial partner for the public sector. In the  
future there will also be major development tasks in the field of care provision,  
kindergartens, schools, roads, water, drains and renovation in this sector.  
An increasing focus on climate and the environment will lead to increased  
funding needs for our customer groups.

We emphasise a high level of competency in local authority financing and  
advice, cost-effective operation and low-risk financing.
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Anders Eidsnes
Employed in Life

KLP in pictures
P H O T O G R A P H I C  C O M P E T I T I O N

KLP’s annual reports are illustrated with pictures from our annual 
internal photographic competition. Our staff submitted 118 great 

entries to the competition. Here you can see some of them.
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Torun Wahl
 Employed in KLP Bedriftspensjon

Anne Therese Sande
Employed in Economy and Finance

Vidar Stenseth
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KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS    Annual Report 2017    7

KLP Kommunekreditt AS is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of KLP Banken AS. 
The Company is a credit institution 
which is funded primarily through the 
issue of bonds covered by loans to the 
public sector. 

KLP Banken AS is a commercial bank 
owned by Kommunal Landspensjons-
kasse gjensidig forsikringsselskap (KLP) 
through KLP Bankholding AS. KLP  
Banken AS also owns all the shares in 
the subsidiary KLP Boligkreditt AS.

The collective operations of KLP Ban-
ken AS and its subsidiaries are divided 
into the Private Market and Public  
Lending business areas. The business is 
nationwide and the companies’ head 
office is in Trondheim.

KLP Kommunekreditt’s presence in the 
market for public sector lending contri-
butes to competition and access to 
favourable long-term financing. 
 

INCOME STATEMENT
Figures in brackets below refer to last 
year’s figures. The Company made a 
profit before tax of NOK 59.9 (53.2)  
million, and NOK 45.6 (39.9) million 
after tax. This gave a return on equity  
of 8.2 (8.1) per cent before tax. 

KLP Kommunekreditt AS is the only 
financial institution in Norway to issue 
covered bonds secured by loans to 
municipal and county authorities or 
companies with public sector guarantees. 

The annual result shows that net inter-
est income has increased compared 
with 2016, but outstanding loans  
showed a decline. Day-to-day margins 
between lending and deposits have 
increased on average compared with the 
previous year. This is mainly due to 
lower funding costs.  

Net interest income from the lending 
and investment portfolios came to NOK  
82.1 (68.0) million in 2017, an increase 

of 21 per cent. Gross interest income 
from lending activities and liquid invest-
ments decreased by 8 per cent compared 
with the year before, mainly as a result 
of falling interest rates. 

Borrowing costs decreased by 13 per 
cent compared with 2016. In addition to 
falling interest rates, credit margins in 
the securities market also declined in 
2017, but significantly less than the  
previous year. As well as the funding 
costs this also affects the value of the 
Company’s securities investments. In 
2017 realised and unrealised gains on 
securities totalled NOK 4.2 million for 
the year as a whole. At the end of 2016 
the income statement showed a corre-
sponding gain of NOK 15.3 million. 

During the term of its borrowing agree-
ments the Company makes regular 
adjustments to reduce its liquidity risk 
and meet regulatory requirements with 
respect to liquidity indicators and capital 
adequacy (Basel III and CRD IV). 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN 2017

EARNINGS 

NOK MILLIONS 2017 2016 Change

Profit/loss before tax 59.9 53.2 6.7

Net interest income 82.1 68.0 14.1

Operating expenses -17.3 -18.9 1.7

Annual Report  2017
KLP Kommunekreditt AS reported a profit of NOK 59.9 million  

before tax. Net lending stood at NOK 16.3 billion. The Company is  
financed largely through the issue of covered bonds. These bonds  

have received the highest possible rating (Aaa).

KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS

BALANCE-SHEET 

NOK BILLIONS 2017 2016 Change

New loan payments 0.8 3.3 -2.5

Net lending 16.3 17.2 -0.9

Liquidity 1.9 2.1 -0.2
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Restructuring of borrowings then 
results in a need to buy back own issues. 
In 2017 the effect on profits of loan buy-
backs was NOK -9.2 (-13.1) million. 

The net accounting effect of changes in 
value of financial instruments was nega-
tive overall, at NOK -5.0 million in 2017. 
The corresponding figure for 2016 was 
positive, at NOK 4.1 million. See note 5. 

Operating costs for KLP Kommune-
kreditt AS were NOK 17.3 (18.9) million 
in 2017, a decrease of 9 per cent from 
2016. The reduction is partly due to 
lower costs for rating, funding assis-
tance and personnel.  

LENDING
Lending activities in KLP Kommune-
kreditt AS are primarily based on the 
sale of new loans directly from the 
Company. In recent years the refinan-
cing of loans in KLP has had no material 
impact on the development of lending 
volumes.   

Total lending stood at NOK 16.3 (17.2) 
billion at the end of 2017. This gives a 
net reduction in lending volume of NOK 
0.9 billion. 74 per cent of the lending 
volume is at floating interest rates. The 
proportion of loans at fixed interest 
rates decreased from 29 per cent in 2016 
to 26 per cent through 2017. 

New loans of NOK 0.8 (3.3) billion were 
paid out in 2017. The lending portfolio 
comprises direct loans to Norwegian 
municipal and county authorities, or 

loans to companies performing public 
services with guarantees from munici-
pal or county authorities. The risk asso-
ciated with the lending port folio is  
considered very low. 

The credit risk associated with lending 
to municipal and county authorities in 
Norway is limited to deferral of pay-
ment and does not provide for cessation 
of payment obligations. This is a conse-
quence of the Norwegian Local Govern-
ment Act, which indemnifies lenders 
against losses if a local authority is  
unable to meet its payment obligations. 
Where payment is deferred, the lender 
is also secured against losses of accrued 
interest, late-payment interest and debt 
collection costs. KLP Kommunekreditt 
AS has not incurred any credit losses on 
loans to Norwegian municipal or county 
authorities.

At the end of 2017 the Company had no 
loans in default.

BORROWING
KLP Kommunekreditt AS has establis-
hed a programme for the issue of 
covered bonds (OMF). In 2017 covered 
bonds equivalent to NOK 4.5 (7.1) billion 
were issued in the Norwegian market. 
There was a buyback of earlier issues 
worth NOK 1.9 billion.

At the end of 2017, NOK 17.1 (17.3)  
billion in bonds covered by loans to the 
municipal sector had been issued in 
Norway. No bonds have been issued 
outside Norway.

The bonds are issued with security in 
the Company’s portfolio of loans to 
municipal and county authorities, or 
companies performing services on 
behalf of the public sector and which 
qualify for public guarantees. Loans to 
companies are guaranteed by municipal 
or county authorities in accordance with 
Section 50 of the Local Government 
Act., central government or banks.  
Guarantees have to be framed as  
ordinary guarantees and cover both 
interest and instalments. The Company 
has achieved the highest rating for its 
covered bond issues. 

BALANCE SHEET AND CAPITAL  
ADEQUACY
Total assets stood at NOK 18.4 (19.5)  
billion at the close of 2017. Of this 
amount, loans to public borrowers total 
NOK 16.3 billion and NOK 1.9 billion are 
liquidity investments.

The Company’s equity and subordina-
ted loan capital, based on the Board of 
Directors’ proposal for the allocation of 
the year’s profit, totalled NOK 719.5 mil-
lion at the close of 2017. An extraordi-
nary dividend of NOK 66.5 million was 
paid to the parent company in the third 
quarter of 2017. Core capital is identical 
with equity and subordinated loan capital. 
This gives a capital adequacy and core 
capital adequacy of 19.7 per cent. The 
corresponding figures for 2016 were 
NOK 741.9 million and 19.1 per cent. 

The current capital requirement, inclu-
ding capital buffers, is 12,0 per cent core 

»
KLP Kommunekreditt 

AS has not incurred any 
credit losses on loans to 
Norwegian municipal or 

county authorities.

Earnings before tax

59.9
NOK MILLION
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capital adequacy and 15.5 per cent  
capital adequacy. The risk-weighted 
balance came to NOK 3.5 (3.8) billion. 
Capital adequacy is considered good. 

LIQUIDITY
KLP Kommunekreditt AS is subject to 
strict rules with respect to the assets it 
may invest in. The portfolio of liquid 
investments comprises safe securities 
and deposits in other banks. The securi-
ties are certificates and bonds with very 
high credit quality, largely covered 
bonds with an AAA rating. Holdings of 
cash and cash equivalents have been 
used to pay out new loans and repay 
borrowings.  

As new borrowings occur when the 
terms for them are considered favoura-
ble, a need sometimes arises to invest 
surplus liquidity. This liquidity contri-
butes to earnings and provides the flexi-
bility needed to meet demand for new 
lending. 

At the end of 2017 the Company had 
outstanding liquid investments in the 
form of interest-bearing securities 
amounting to NOK 1.4 (1.7) billion. 
Securities are recognised at market 
value. Deposits in other banks totalled 
NOK 0.5 (0.4) billion at the same point 
in time. 

APPLICATION OF THE YEAR’S PROFIT 
KLP Kommunekreditt AS’s financial 
statements for 2017 show a total net 
profit of NOK 45.6 million. The Board of 
Directors proposes that a group contri-

bution of NOK 58.5 million be paid to 
KLP. NOK 44.5 million will be received 
from KLP in return as a group contribu-
tion without any tax effect. Net profit 
and group contribution will be transfer-
red to other owners’ equity.

ABOUT THE FINANCIAL  
STATEMENTS
The Board of Directors believes that the 
financial statements provide a true and 
fair view of the Company’s assets and 
liabilities, financial position and results. 
The preconditions exist for continua-
tion as a going concern, and it is on this 
assumption that the financial state-
ments have been prepared.

KLP Kommunekreditt AS prepares its 
financial statements in accordance with 
international accounting standards 
(IFRS), as approved by the EU with 
associated interpretations. See Note 2 
for further details.

To provide for good quality of financial 
reporting, detailed plans are produced 
for each set of accounts, with a clear 
allocation of responsibilities and tasks. 
Valuations of the Company’s assets and 
liabilities are documented in writing. 

RATING
The rating agencies’ assessment of KLP 
Kommunekreditt AS and the KLP 
Group have a bearing on the Company’s 
borrowing terms. The Company has 
engaged Moody’s to credit rate the 
Company’s bonds. All issues of covered 
bonds received an Aaa rating.

RISK MANAGEMENT  
KLP Kommunekreditt AS is subject to 
KLP Banken’s risk management frame-
work, the purpose of which is to ensure 
that risks are identified, analysed and 
managed by means of policies, limits, 
routines and instructions. 

It has established its own guidelines for 
the most important individual risks 
(liquidity, credit, market, operational 
and compliance risk) and an overall 
policy for risk management, which 
includes principles, organisation, limits, 
etc. for the Bank’s overall risk. The poli-
cies are adopted by the Board of Direc-
tors and are reviewed at least once a 
year. The policies are of an overarching 
nature and are complemented by proce-
dures, rules, and instructions determi-
ned at the administrative level.

The Company aims to maintain a low 
level of operational risk, and to be cha-
racterised by a high level of professional 
competence, solid routines and efficient 
operations. 

The Company is included in the KLP 
Banken Group’s process to assess and 
quantify material risks and calculate its 
capital requirement (ICAAP). The capi-
tal requirement assessment is forward-
looking and, in addition to calculating 
needs based on current exposure (and, 
if appropriate, limits), an assessment is 
made of needs in light of planned 
growth, determined strategic changes, 
etc. The Company’s Board of Directors 
takes an active part in these assess-
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ments and, in addition to the capital 
requirement assessment, determines a 
desired level for total capital (the capi-
tal target). 

The Board of Directors of KLP Banken 
AS has established a Risk Committee. 
The Risk Committee deals with matters 
specifically related to risk and has an 
advisory function to the Board of KLP 
Kommunekreditt AS.    

LENDING ACTIVITIES AND THE 
BANK’S ROLE
Lending to the public sector is provided 
by KLP and KLP Kommunekreditt AS 
and managed by KLP Banken.

Total lending for KLP Banken (Public 
Market) was NOK 62.1 (57.4) billion at 
the end of 2017, an increase of NOK 4.6 
(4.7) billion, or 8 per cent, from 2016. 
Total payouts on new loans through the 
year came to NOK 9.3 (10.1) billion.

During 2017 requests for new loans and 
refinancing amounting to NOK 74 (63) 
billion were received from municipal 
and county authorities and municipal 
companies. New payments amount to 
12 per cent of the volume of applicati-
ons. This makes KLP Banken a signifi-
cant long-term lender to public welfare 
and value creation.

THE WORK OF THE BOARD OF  
DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors held seven board 
meetings in 2017. For an overview of 
the remuneration paid to members of 
the Company’s Board and management, 
see Note 16 to the year-end financial 
statements. The Board comprised two 
women and two men in 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s articles of association 
and applicable legislation provide guid-
elines for corporate governance, and 
define a clear division of roles between 
governing bodies and day-to-day 
management.

The Board is not authorised to issue or 
buy back shares in the company.

The Board of Directors determines the 
guidelines for the Company’s activities. 

Binding contracts may be signed by the 
CEO or the Chairman of the Board 
alone.

The CEO is in charge of the day-to-day 
management of the Company in accor-
dance with instructions issued by the 
Board of Directors. 

An account of KLP Banken’s corporate 
governance is available on the KLP 
website; see  https://www.klp.no/ 
om-klp. 

WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND  
ORGANISATION
KLP Kommunekreditt AS had two 
employees at the close of 2017. These 
also had employment relationships 
with other companies in the KLP  
Banken Group. 

A management agreement has been 
entered into with KLP Banken AS with 
respect to administration, IT support, 
finance and risk management, as well 
as borrowing and liquidity management.

As part of the KLP Group, KLP 
Kommune kreditt AS complies with the 
Group’s guidelines on equality and 
diversity, whose objectives, initiatives 
and activities take account of the basis 
for discrimination described in the 
legislation. A central working group has 
drawn up internal targets for equality 
and diversity. In connection with  
recruitment, the Company routinely 
states its desire to be contacted by all 
qualified job applicants irrespective of 
age, gender, disability, political  
opinions, sexual orientation or ethnic 
background.  

The Board of Directors considers the 
working environment to be good.

EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT
Through its social responsibility  
strategy KLP has pledged to maintain 
good routines for the measurement and 
reduction of its companies’ environ-
mental impact. Like the rest of the KLP 
Group, KLP Kommunekreditt AS takes 
its environmental impact seriously. As 
an office-based company, it has greatest 
control over energy consumption, 
transport, waste management and  

»
KLP and  

KLP Kommunekreditt AS 
have a total of NOK 62.1 

billion in loans to the 
public sector in Norway. 

The year’s growth in 2017 
was NOK 4.6 billion, or  

8 per cent.

mailto:https://www.klp.no/om-klp%0Aom-klp.?subject=
mailto:https://www.klp.no/om-klp%0Aom-klp.?subject=
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The Board of Directors of KLP Kommunekreditt AS. From the left Aage E. Schaanning, Ingrid Aune, Sverre Thornes,  
Aud Norunn Røsok Strand.

Foto: R
oar G

rønstad
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procurement. The parent company, KLP 
Banken AS, is environmentally certified. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
As part of the KLP Group, KLP 
Kommune kreditt AS aims to contribute 
to sustainable investments and responsi-
ble business operations. Social responsi-
bility is of strategic importance for KLP. 
This is manifested through actions  
linked to the Group’s business. KLP has 
signed the UN Global Compact, and is 
thereby committed to working for 
human rights, workers’ rights and the 
environment, and against corruption.  
A more detailed descriptions of targets, 
measures and results can be found on 
the KLP website, www.klp.no/english/
corporate-responsibility).

FUTURE PROSPECTS
Together with KLP, KLP Kommune-
kreditt has a good position in the market 
for public lending. Its presence in the 
market contributes to competition and 
access to long-term, low-cost financing. 
Total growth through 2017 shows that 
the market position has been main-
tained. 

High credit quality in the loan portfolios 
helps KLP Kommunekreditt AS to 
obtain the most favourable borrowing 
terms possible. The authorities’ regula-
tion of banks and financial institutions 
means that they have to meet a number 
of regulatory requirements with respect 
to capital and liquidity. These require 
regular earnings that make it possible  
to meet the requirements. 

The market for loans to the municipal 
sector is still growing and a large portion 
of the loans taken are financed in the 
securities market rather than in the 
financial institutions. KLP Kommune-
kreditt AS is well capitalised and has an 
advantage as a stable and long-term  
lender in the market. In the future too, 
the Company will be dependent on the 
general development of the financial 
markets in order to be able to obtain 
financing on terms that make it possible 
to achieve sufficient profitability. 

Norwegian municipalities have developed 
a good and extensive range of services 
to the population. The combination of 
increasing longevity and population 

growth leads us to expect a continued 
high level of public sector investment 
needs. It is highly likely that demand for 
loans in the municipal sector and for 
projects with municipal guarantees and 
owner ship will continue to grow in the 
years ahead, whatever the changes in 
local government structure or responsi-
bilities.

A large proportion of the municipal 
authorities’ funding will probably derive 
from the securities market in the future 
too. The Board of Directors never-
theless assumes that there will still be a 
need for a significant element of long-
term financing over and above what the 
securities market can offer to public-
sector borrowers.

KLP Kommunekreditt AS will continue 
to offer loans for investment purposes in 
the public sector and to maintain a low 
risk profile. The further growth and 
development of the Company is largely 
dependent on obtaining sufficiently 
good borrowing terms in the market to 
compete for public sector loans. 

Oslo, 14 March 2018
The Board of Directors of KLP Kommunekreditt AS

 SVERRE THORNES  AAGE E. SCHAANNING

 Chair  Deputy Chair

 INGRID AUNE  AUD NORUNN STRAND

  CARL STEINAR LOUS

  Director

mailto:www.klp.no/english/corporate-responsibility?subject=
mailto:www.klp.no/english/corporate-responsibility?subject=
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Marianne Wright Pedersen
Employed in Non-life insurance

Anne Therese Sande 
Employed in Economy and Finance

Anders Eidsnes 
Employed in Life
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Anders Eidsnes 
Employed in Life
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Income Statement  
KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS

NOTE NOK THOUSANDS
01.01.2017
-31.12.2017

01.01.2016
-31.12.2016

Interest income and similar income 403 726 437 565

Cost of interest and similar costs -321 591 -369 530

10 Net interest income 82 135 68 035

5 Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments -5 006 4 070

Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments -5 006 4 070

25 Other operating expenses -17 251 -18 906

Total other operating expenses -17 251 -18 906

Operating profit/loss before tax 59 878 53 198

21 Tax on ordinary income -14 303 -13 245

Income for the year 45 575 39 953

Other comprehensive income 0 0

Other comprehensive income for the year after tax 0 0

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 45 575 39 953

ALLOCATION OF INCOME

Allocated to/from retained earnings -45 575 -39 953

TOTAL ALLOCATION OF INCOME -45 575 -39 953

Total profit in% of total assets 0,25 % 0,20 %
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Balance Sheet
KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS

NOTE NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

ASSETS

11,28 Loans to and receivables from credit institutions 489 485 414 803

11 Loans to and receivables from customers 16 321 451 17 245 853

8 Fixed-income securities 1 436 406 1 723 589

9 Financial derivatives 87 847 107 927

26 Other assets 3 503 24 060

TOTAL ASSETS 18 338 692 19 516 233

LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY

LIABILITIES

17 Liabilities to credit institutions 275 170 1 170 823

18 Liabilities created on issuance of securities 17 148 732 17 342 542

9 Financial derivatives 176 243 240 602

21 Deferred tax 1 563 1 310

23 Other liabilities 15 712 14 697

23 Provisions for accrued costs and liabilities 332 4 395

TOTAL LIABILITIES 17 617 753 18 774 369

OWNERS’ EQUITY

Share capital 362 500 362 500

Share premium 312 500 312 500

Other owners’ equity 45 939 66 864

TOTAL OWNERS’ EQUITY 720 939 741 864
Bankinnskudd (herav bundet 2.453)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY 18 338 692 19 516 233

Oslo, 14 March 2018
The Board of Directors of KLP Kommunekreditt AS

 SVERRE THORNES  AAGE E. SCHAANNING

 Chair  Deputy Chair

 INGRID AUNE  AUD NORUNN STRAND

  CARL STEINAR LOUS

  Director
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Statement of Owners’ Equity
KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS

2017
NOK THOUSANDS Share capital

Share  
premium Other equity

Total owners’ 
equity

Owners’ equity 1 January 2017 362 500 312 500 66 864 741 864

Income for the year 0 0 45 575 45 575

Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 0

Comprehensive income for the year 0 0 45 575 45 575

Dividends paid 0 0 -66 500 -66 500

Group contribution received 0 0 30 565 30 565

Group contribution paid after tax 0 0 -30 565 -30 565

Total transactions with the owners 0 0 -66 500 -66 500

Owners’ equity 31 December 2017 362 500 312 500 45 939 720 939

2016
NOK THOUSANDS Share capital

Share  
premium Other equity

Total owners’ 
equity

Owners’ equity 1 January 2016 362 500 312 500 14 216 689 216

Income for the year 0 0 39 953 39 953

Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 0

Comprehensive income for the year 0 0 39 953 39 953

Dividends paid 0 0 47 018 47 018

Group contribution received 0 0 -34 323 -34 323

Group contribution paid after tax 0 0 12 695 12 695
Total transactions with the owners

Owners’ equity 31 December 2016 362 500 312 500 66 864 741 864

NOK THOUSANDS
Number of 

shares Par value  Share capital
Share  

premium Other equity Total

Equity at 1 January 2017 3 625 000 0.1 362 500 312 500 66 864 741 864

Changes in the period 1 January 
- 31 December - - 0 0 -20 925 -20 925

Equity at 31 December 2017 3 625 000 0.1 362 500 312 500 45 939 720 939

There is one class of shares. All the shares are owned by KLP Banken AS.
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Statement of Cash Flows
KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS

NOTE NOK THOUSANDS
01.01.2017
-31.12.2017

01.01.2016
-31.12.2016

OPERATIONAL ACTIVITIES

Payments received from customers – interest, commission & charges 383 175 386 298

Receipts on loans to customers -788 790 -3 273 017

Payment for the credit card portfolio 1 598 555 1 431 963

Disbursements on operations -24 131 -14 295

Net receipts/payments on other operating activities 1 160 4 214

Net interest from investment accounts 4 282 572

Income tax paid 0 0

Net cash flow from operating activities 1 174 251 -1 464 265

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Payments on purchase of securities -943 836 -1 754 141

Receipts on sales of securities 1 228 843 3 170 907

Interest received from securities 23 698 48 395

Net cash flow from investment activities 308 705 1 465 162

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts on loans 3 517 000 6 865 000

Repayment and redemption of loans -1 039 193 -1 724 669

Payment for loan buybacks -3 525 000 -4 859 000

Net payment of interest on loans -283 233 -310 334

Dividends paid -66 500 0

Group contribution payment made -10 188 0

Net cash flow from financing activities -1 407 114 -29 003

Net cash flow during the period 75 842 -28 106

Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 402 810 430 916

28 Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 478 652 402 810

Net receipts/disbursements (-) of cash 75 842 -28 106
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We hereby declare that, to the best of our knowledge, the annual financial statements for the period from 1 January to 
31 December 2017 have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards, and that the information in the 
financial statements gives a true and fair view of the Company’s assets, liabilities, financial position and overall profit or loss.

We also declare that the Directors’ report provides a true and fair overview of the development, profit or loss and the financial 
position of the Company, together with a description of the most significant risk and uncertainty factors the Company faces.

Declaration Pursuant to the Norwegian 
Securities trading act, Section 5-5 
KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS

Oslo, 14 March 2018
The Board of Directors of KLP Kommunekreditt AS

 SVERRE THORNES  AAGE E. SCHAANNING

 Chair  Deputy Chair

 INGRID AUNE  AUD NORUNN STRAND

  CARL STEINAR LOUS

  Director
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Notes to the Accounts
KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS

NOTE 1  General information

KLP Kommunekreditt AS was founded 
on 25 August 2009. The Company is a 
credit enterprise whose object is to pro-
vide and acquire public sector loans that 
are guaranteed by the Norwegian state, 
Norwegian county administrations or 
Norwegian municipalities. Borrowers 
provide ordinary surety covering both 
repayments and interest.
 
 

The business is primarily financed by 
issuing covered bonds (obligasjoner 
med fortrinnsrett - OMF) with security 
in public sector guaranteed loans. Some 
of these are listed on Oslo Børs (Stock 
Exchange). 

KLP Kommunekreditt AS is registered 
and domiciled in Norway. KLP Kommune-
kreditt AS has its head office at Beddingen 
8 in Trondheim.

The Company is a wholly-owned  
subsidiary of KLP Banken AS, which is 
in turn wholly owned by Kommunal 
Landspensjonskasse (KLP) through the 
holding company, KLP Bankholding AS. 
KLP is a mutual insurance company.

The annual financial statements are 
available at www.klp.no.

NOTE 2  Summary of the most important accounting principles 

Below is a description of the most 
important accounting principles used in 
preparation of the financial statements 
for KLP Kommunekreditt AS. These 
principles are used in the same way in 
all periods presented unless otherwise 
indicated.

2.1 FUNDAMENTAL PRINCIPLES 
The financial statements for KLP Kom-
munekreditt AS have been prepared in 
accordance with international accoun-
ting standards (IFRS) and interpreta-
tions from the IFRS interpretations 
committee, as adopted by the EU. The 
Norwegian Accounting Act and the 
Regulations concerning annual acco-
unts for banks, mortgage firms and 
finance companies (the Accounting 
Regulations) contain individual require-
ments for additional information which 
is not required under IFRS. These sup-
plementary information requirements 
have been incorporated into the notes 
to the financial statements.

The annual accounts have been prepa-
red on the principle of historic cost, with 
the following exceptions:

• Financial assets and liabilities (inclu-
ding financial derivatives) are valued 

 at fair value through profit or loss
• Financial assets and liabilities are 

valued in accordance with the rules 
on fair value hedging

To prepare the accounts in accordance 
with IFRS, management has to make 
accounting estimates and approximate 
valuations. This will affect the value of 
the Company’s assets and liabilities, 
income and expenses recognised in the 
financial statements. Actual figures may 
deviate from estimates used. Areas in 
which discretionary valuations and  
estimates of material significance for 
the Company have been shown are 
described in Note 3.

All amounts are presented in NOK 
thousands without decimals unless 
otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been  
prepared in accordance with the going 
concern assumption. 

2.1.1. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 
PRINCIPLES AND INFORMATION 

a) New and changed standards adopted 
by the Company in 2017

No standards, changes or interpretations 
that came into effect during 2017 have 
been adopted that have had significant 
effect on the Company’s/Group’s  
accounts.

b) Standards, changes and interpretations 
of existing standards that have not 
come into effect and where the  
Company/Group has not elected  
advanced application.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments , which 
covers the classification, measurement 
and recognition of financial assets and 
financial liabilities, introduces new 
rules for hedge accounting, with a new 
impairment model for financial assets. 
The Company will start using the  
standard from 2018 onwards. IFRS 9 
has to be applied retrospectively, with 
the exception of hedge accounting. 
Retrospective application means that 
KLP Kommunekreditt AS has to pro-
duce an opening balance as of 
01/01/2018 as if it had always applied 
the new principles. As permitted in the 
transitional provisions for IFRS 9, KLP 
Kommunekreditt AS will not restate 
comparative figures for previous periods 
when it implements the standard on 
01.01.2018. The effects of new policies 

mailto:www.klp.no?subject=
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in the opening balance for 2018 are 
recognised directly in equity.

IFRS 9 replaces the classification and 
measurement models in IAS 39 with 
one model which basically has only 
three categories: amortised cost, fair 
value with value changes in other com-
prehensive income, and fair value with 
value changes through profit or loss.

Classification of loans depends on the 
entity’s business model for managing 
its financial assets and the characteris-
tics of the individual assets’ cash flows. 
A debt-equity instrument is measured 
at amortised cost if: a) the business 
model is to own the financial asset in 
order to receive the contractual cash 
flows, and b) the instrument’s contrac-
tual cash flows exclusively represent 
payments of principal and interest. If 
these criteria are in place, but the busi-
ness model also provides for sales from 
the portfolio, the debt instruments are 
measured at fair value with value chan-
ges through other comprehensive 
income, with interest income, currency 
translation effects and any write-downs 
presented in ordinary profit/loss. Value 
changes recognised through other com-
prehensive income have to be reclassi-
fied as profit when the assets are sold or 
otherwise disposed of.

All other debt and equity instruments, 
including investments in complex 
instruments, must be recognised at fair 
value through profit or loss. There is an 
exception for investments in equity 
instruments that are not held for sale 
and are not a conditional payment fol-
lowing the transfer of an enterprise. For 
such investments, value changes can be 
passed through other comprehensive 
income, without any subsequent recyc-
ling to the profit.

For financial obligations that the unit 
chooses to measure at fair value, the 
portion of the change in value due to 
changes in credit risk is recognised in 
other comprehensive income unless this 
creates or reinforces an accounting  
mismatch, and not in profit/loss as with 
IAS 39.

 

The new rules for hedge accounting 
mean that the accounting for the hedge 
better reflects the general practice for 
risk management in the undertakings. 
As a general rule, it will be easier to use 
hedge accounting in the future. The 
new standard also introduces extended 
information requirements and changes 
in the rules for presenting the hedge.

KLP Kommunekreditt has assessed the 
classification and measurement of 
assets and liabilities covered by the 
new standard. It has been concluded 
that lending operations are conducted 
according to a business model to 
acquire lending to receive contractual 
cash flows. The contractual cash flows 
comprise solely payment of principal 
and interest. This means that the loans 
will be accounted for at amortized cost 
as a continuation of the same measure-
ment method that has been used under 
IAS 39. Other financial instruments 
have been recognised at fair value with 
value changes through profit or loss. 
This will be continued under IFRS 9. 
The introduction of the new standard is 
thus not expected to have a significant 
impact on the entity’s classification and 
measurement of financial instruments. 

Other significant changes in classifica-
tion and measurement are the intro-
duction of a new impairment model for 
losses on loans and receivables which is 
based on expected credit losses. 

The model has three stages, depending 
on the change in credit quality. How the 
impairment loss is to be measured is 
determined for each individual stage 
and the model uses the effective inter-
est rate method. A simplified approach 
is allowed for financial assets that do 
not have a significant financial compo-
nent (e.g. trade receivables). Upon ini-
tial recognition, and in cases where the 
credit risk has not increased signifi-
cantly after initial recognition, provi-
sion has to be made for credit losses 
that are expected to occur over the next 
12 months (step 1). If the credit risk has 
increased significantly, the provisions 
should correspond to the expected cre-
dit losses over the expected useful life 
(step 2). If there is a loss event, impair-
ments are raised equal to the expected 
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loss on the commitment throughout its 
life (step 3). 

KLP Kommunekreditt has developed a 
new loss provision model that complies 
with the rules in IFRS 9. In KLP Kom-
munekreditt AS, the likelihood of credit 
losses in the loan portfolio is conside-
red to be extremely low. This is based 
on history and experience of lending to 
the public sector, as well as the strong 
legislation that is attached to municipal 
borrowing and payment problems. The 
company’s assessment is therefore that 
all public lending in KLP Kommunekre-
ditt AS has low credit risk and is thus 
placed in step 1. For this portfolio, a 
simplified loss ratio method is used. 
The loss is set to 1 per cent of the out-
standing balance, and the expected loss 
is calculated for the next 12 months 
based on this discounted by the loan 
interest rate 

The effect of implementing the new 
rules and regulations is calculated as 
the difference between the carrying 
value of loss provisions according to the 
old rules at 31 December 2017 and the 
value of loss provisions calculated 
according to the new rules as of 1 Janu-
ary 2018. This effect will be recognised 
as a change in the posted loss provisi-
ons with a balancing entry directly 
against equity, so the income statement 
is not affected. The company has good 
collateral in the loan portfolio and no 
capitalized loss in the balance sheet 
per. 31.12.2017. The transition to a new 
write-down model 01.01.2018 with a 
simplified loss ratio means an increase 
of NOK 0.2 million for loan lending in 
KLP Kommunekreditt AS on imple-
mentation 01.01.2018. Transitional 
notes relating to classification and mea-
surement, the new impairment model, 
and changes in accounting policies for 
financial instruments (from 1 January 
2018) are set out in note 2.9.1 Changes 
in accounting principles. A summary of 
significant accounting principles rela-
ted to financial instruments which are 
effective from 1 January 2018, is given 
in note 2.9.2 Summary of significant 
accounting policies related to financial 
instruments. 

 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers deals with revenue recogni-
tion. The standard calls for analysis of 
the customer contract, identifying the 
individual performance obligations. A 
performance obligation may be a good 
or service. Income is recognised when a 
customer achieves control over a good 
or service, and thus has the opportunity 
to decide on the use of and may receive 
the advantages from the good or the 
service. The standard replaces IAS 18 
Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Con-
tracts and associated interpretations. 
The Company will use the standard 
from 2018 onwards. The transition to 
IFRS 15 is not expected to have any 
material effect on the Company’s finan-
cial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases will result in almost all 
leases being capitalised, as the distinc-
tion between operational and financial 
leasing has been removed. Under the 
new standard, the right to use a leased 
object is an asset, and an obligation to 
pay a lease is a debt to be shown on the 
balance sheet. The exceptions are 
short-term and low-value leases. The 
accounting treatment for lessors will 
not be significantly altered. The Com-
pany will apply the standard from 2019 
onwards. The transition to IFRS 16 is 
not expected to have any material 
effect on the financial statements, as 
the Company does not have any leases 
of significance because only small 
assets are leased.

There are no other IFRS standards or 
IFRIC interpretations not yet in force 
that are expected to have a significant 
impact on the Company’s financial sta-
tements.

2.2 TRANSLATION OF TRANSACTIONS 
IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

2.2.1 Functional currency and  
presentation currency
The accounts are presented in NOK, 
which is the functional and presenta-
tion currency of the Company.

2.3 FINANCIAL ASSETS
The Company’s financial assets are 
divided into the following categories: 
financial assets measured at fair value 
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through profit or loss and financial 
assets measured at amortized cost. In 
addition, hedge accounting is used in 
accordance with the rules on fair value 
hedging. The purpose of the asset deter-
mines the classification and manage-
ment undertakes classification on 
acquisition of the financial asset.

2.3.1 Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss
This category is divided into two sub-
categories: held for trading, and volun-
tarily categorized at fair value through 
profit or loss on acquisition in accor-
dance with the fair value option.

a) Financial assets held for trading are 
assets acquired primarily with a view to 
providing a profit from short-term price 
fluctuations. The Company’s derivati-
ves are included in this category unless 
they are included as an element of acco-
unting hedging in accordance with the 
rules on hedge accounting.

b) Financial assets voluntarily categori-
zed at fair value through profit or loss on 
acquisition comprise financial assets 
managed as a group and where their 
earnings are valued and reported to 
management on the basis of fair value. 
The size of the portfolio is decided on 
the basis of the Company’s desired risk 
exposure to the interest market.

The principles for calculating the fair 
value of the various instruments are 
described in Note 6.

Gains or losses from changes in fair 
value of assets classified as financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss 
are included in the income statement in 
the period they arise. This is included in 
the line “Net unrealized gain/loss finan-
cial instruments”.

Coupon interest is taken to income as it 
accrues and is included in the line 
“Interest income and similar income”.

2.3.2 Loans and receivables at amorti-
zed cost 
Loans and receivables, with the excep-
tion of derivatives, are financial assets 
with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not traded in an active market 
or which the Company intends to sell in 
the short-term or has earmarked at fair 
value through profit or loss. 

Loans and receivables are initially 
recognized in the financial position sta-
tement at fair value. Subsequent measu-
rement is at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method with 
write-down for credit losses if appropri-
ate. 
 
Effective interest on loans and receiva-
bles is taken to income and included in 
the line “Interest income and similar 
income”.

2.3.3 Derivatives and hedging
Financial derivatives are capitalized at 
fair value at the time the derivative con-
tract is struck. On subsequent measure-
ment the derivatives are recognized at 
fair value and are presented as an asset 
if the value is positive and a liability if 
the value is negative. Recognition of 
associated gains and losses depends on 
whether the derivative has been identi-
fied as an accounting hedge instrument 
and in which type of accounting hedge 
the derivative is included.

For derivatives not included in accoun-
ting hedge relationships, gains and los-
ses are recognized through profit or loss 
as they arise in the line for “Net gain/
(loss) on financial instruments”. These 
fall into the category of financial assets 
at fair value reported through the 
income statement.

The derivatives which are hedging 
instruments are used for hedging inter-
est rate risk on fixed-interest borrowing 
and lending. In its hedging activity, the 
Company safeguards itself against 
movements in market interest rates. 
Changes in the credit spread are not 
taken into account in the hedging effec-
tiveness. The Company uses the rules 
on fair value hedging, so that the book 
value of the hedged item (asset or liabi-
lity) is corrected with the value develop-
ment in the hedged risk. The value 
change is recognized in the income sta-
tement.  On entry into a hedging con-
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tract, the connection between the hed-
ging instrument and the hedging object 
is documented, in addition to the pur-
pose of the risk management and the 
strategy behind the different hedging 
transactions.  The hedging effectiveness 
is measured regularly to ensure the 
hedge is effective. 

If the hedging no longer fulfils the crite-
ria for hedge accounting, the recogni-
zed effect of the hedging for hedging 
objects recognized at amortized cost is 
amortized over the period up to the due 
date of the hedging instrument.
 
2.3.4 Accounting treatment of  
financial assets 
Purchases and sales of financial assets 
are recognized on the trading date, i.e. 
when the Company has committed 
itself to buying or selling that financial 
asset. Financial assets are recognized at 
fair value. Direct costs of purchase are 
included in acquisition cost except for 
purchase costs associated with assets at 
fair value through profit or loss. For 
these assets purchase costs are taken to 
expenses directly. Financial assets 
cease to be recognized when the Com-
pany is no longer entitled to receive the 
cash flow from the asset or the Com-
pany has transferred all risk and entitle-
ments associated with its ownership. 
Recognition of financial liabilities cea-
ses when the underlying obligation in 
the contract has been met, been cancel-
led or expired. 

2.3.5 Write down of financial assets 
valued at amortized cost
If there is objective proof of value 
impairment write-down is carried out. 
In assessing whether there is value 
impairment, weight is attached to 
whether the issuer/debtor has signifi-
cant financial difficulties and whether 
there is breach of contract, including 
default. The write-down is calculated by 
comparing the new, anticipated cash 
flows with the original cash flows disco-
unted by the original effective interest 
rate (assets with fixed interest) or by the 
effective interest rate at the time of 
measurement (assets with variable inte-
rest).

Loss assessment and loss write-down is 
carried out quarterly on individual loans 
where there is objective evidence of 
impairment. Lending is also assessed 
by group. If there is objective evidence 
of impairment in a group of loans, 
write-down is carried out. The write-
down is reversed if after the date of 
write-down events occur that reduce 
the loss.

2.3.6 Netting
Financial assets and liabilities are pre-
sented net in the statement of financial 
position when there is an unconditional 
offsetting entitlement that can be 
legally enforced and the intention is to 
settle net, or realize the asset and liabi-
lity simultaneously.

2.4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents are defined 
as receivables from credit institutions 
without termination date. The amount 
does not include receivables from credit 
institutions that are linked to purchase 
and sale of securities in the manage-
ment of the securities portfolios. The 
statement of cash flows has been prepa-
red in accordance with the direct 
method. 

2.5 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The Company’s financial liabilities 
comprise liabilities to credit institutions 
and covered bonds issued.

2.5.1 Liabilities to credit institutions 
Liabilities to credit institutions are capi-
talized at market value on take-up. As a 
rule, on subsequent measurement the 
liability is recognized at amortized cost 
in accordance with the effective interest 
rate method. The interest costs are 
included in the amortization and are 
shown in the line “Interest costs and 
similar costs” in the income statement.

2.5.2 Covered bonds issued 
In the first instance covered bonds 
issued are recognized at fair value on 
take-up adjusted for purchase costs, i.e. 
nominal adjusted for any premium/dis-
count on issue. On subsequent valua-
tion the bonds are valued at amortized 
cost by the effective interest method. 
The interest costs are shown in the line 
“Interest costs and similar costs” in the 
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income statement. Bonds with fixed 
interest are recognized in accordance 
with the rules on fair value hedging 
inasmuch as they are hedged against 
change in interest rate level.

2.6 OWNERS’ EQUITY 
The owners’ equity in the Company 
comprises owners’ equity contributed 
and retained earnings.

2.6.1 Owners’ equity contributed 
Owners’ equity contributed comprises 
share capital, the share premium fund 
and other owners’ equity contributed.

2.6.2 Retained earnings 
Retained earnings comprise other 
owners’ equity. Ordinary company law 
rules apply for any allocation or use of 
the retained earnings.

2.7 PRESENTATION OF INCOME 
Income on sale of goods and services is 
valued at fair value of the consideration, 
net of deductions for VAT and any  
discounts. 

2.7.1 Interest income/expenses 
Interest income and interest expenses 
associated with all interest-bearing 
financial instruments valued at amorti-
zed cost are taken to income using the 
effective interest rate method. 

For interest-bearing financial invest-
ments measured at fair value, interest 
income is classified as “Interest income 
and similar income”, whereas other 
value changes are classified as “Net 
gain or loss on financial investments”.

2.8 TAX 
Tax costs in the income statement com-
prise tax payable and changes in defer-
red tax. Tax is charged to the income 
statement, apart from tax relating to 
items reported under other compre-
hensive income. Deferred tax and tax 
assets are calculated as differences  
between the accounting and taxation 
value of assets and liabilities. Deferred 
tax assets are capitalized to the extent it 
can be shown probable that the  
Company will have sufficient taxable 
profit to exploit the tax asset.

The company pays no benefits to 
employees and is not covered by the 
rules on financial activity tax. The 
company’s nominal income tax rate in 
2017 is 24 per cent, while deferred tax is 
calculated by 23 per cent as the income 
tax rate is reduced by one percentage 
point in 2018. 

2.9 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT  
ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR  
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
(FROM 1 JANUARY 2018) 

2.9.1 Changes in accounting principles
KLP Kommunekreditt AS has used 
IFRS 9 and IFRS 7R, which apply for 
the first time to years beginning  
1 January 2018 and after. 

As permitted in the transitional  
provisions in IFRS 9, KLP Kommune-
kreditt AS has chosen not to restate 
comparative figures. The comparative 
figures for 2017, reported in accordance 
with IAS 39, are therefore not compara-
ble with the information presented for 
2018. Differences arising from the 
transition to IFRS 9 are charged 
directly to other equity as of 1 January 
2018. 

2.9.1.1 Changes in classification and 
measurement 
Classification and measurement of 
financial assets in accordance with 
IFRS 9, apart from equity instruments 
and derivatives, are based on a combi-
nation of the unit’s business model for 
the management of assets and the 
instrument’s contractual cash flow  
characteristics.

Measurement categories for financial 
assets according to IAS 39 (fair value 
through profit and loss, available for 
sale, held-to-maturity and loans and 
receivables) have been replaced by:

• Debt instruments at amortised cost
• Debt instruments at fair value 

through other comprehensive  
income, with gains or losses recycled 
through profit or loss on derecogni-
tion.

• Equity instruments at fair value 
through other comprehensive  



  Annual Report 2017  |  Notes    27KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS  

 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Classification 
according to IAS 39

Carrying 
amount 

according 
to IAS 39 
(MNOK)

Classification 
according to IFRS 9

Carrying 
amount 

according 
to IFRS 9 
(MNOK)

Loans to and receivables from credit  
institutions

Loans and receivables 489 Amortised cost 489

Loans to and receivables from customers Loans and receivables 11 966 Amortised cost 11 966

Fair value through profit or loss  
(hedging)

4 356
Fair value through profit or loss 
(hedging)

4 356

Fixed-income securities Fair value through profit or loss (FVO) 1 436 Fair value through profit or loss 1 436

Financial derivatives (assets) Fair value through profit or loss 88 Fair value through profit or loss 88

Liabilities created on issuance of securities (Amortised cost) -15 503 Amortised cost -15 503

Fair value through profit or loss 
(hedging)

-1 921
Fair value through profit or loss 
(hedging)

-1 921

Financial derivatives (liabilities) Fair value through profit or loss -176
Fair value through profit 
or loss

-176

income, without recycling gains or 
losses on derecognition

• Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss 

Accounting for financial liabilities is  
largely unchanged, except that for  
liabilities specifically recognised at fair 
value, changes in fair value due to own 
credit risk are recognised through other 
income and expenses without recycling.   

2.9.1.2 Changes in the impairment 
model 
Today’s rules (IAS 39) involve provisions 
for losses based on an ‘incurred loss’ 
model, i.e. loan loss provisions are con-
ditional on objective evidence that an 
impairment loss has occurred on the 

balance sheet date, while IFRS 9 stipula-
ted provisions for expected loss. The 
new principles apply to financial assets 
that are debt instruments, and which 
are measured at amortised cost or fair 
value with value changes recognised 
through other comprehensive income. 
Loan commitments, financial guarantee 
contracts and leases due are covered. 
The measurement of impairment for 
expected loss depends on whether the 
credit risk has increased significantly 
since initial recognition. Upon initial 
recognition, and when the credit risk 
has not increased significantly after  
initial recognition, provisions are based 
on 12 months’ expected loss (step 1). If 
the credit risk has increased significantly 
since initial recognition, but there is no 

objective evidence of impairment, 
write-downs are based on expected loss 
over the lifetime (step 2). The individual 
loss provisions in IAS 39 will not be 
affected by the transition to  
IFRS 9 (step 3).

Information on the effects of the  
transition to IFRS 9 is given in note 
2.9.1.3 to 2.9.1.7 below. Note 2.9.2,  
Summary of significant accounting  
policies related to financial instruments, 
sets out the accounting policies for 
financial instruments to be applied from 
1 January 2018 (as well as previous IAS 
39 accounting policies for financial 
instruments applied in the comparative 
period). 
 

2.9.1.3 Classification and measurement of financial instruments  
The table below shows the measurement category and book value of financial instruments in accordance with IAS 39 and IFRS 9 
at the time of transition. 

As is evident from the table, there are no significant changes in the classification and measurement of financial assets or  
financial liabilities.
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NOTE

 
 
FINANCIAL ASSETS  (FIGURES IN MNOK)

Carrying amount 
according to 

IAS 39 
31 December 2017

Change as 
a result of 

reclassifica-
tion

Change as 
a result of 

revaluation 

Carrying 
amount 

according to 
IFRS 9 

1 January 
2018

AMORTISED COST

Loans to and receivables from credit institutions 489 0 0 489

Loans to and receivables from customers 11 966 0 0 11 966

Total effect at amortised cost 12 455 0 0 12 455

FAIR VALUE WITH VALUE CHANGES THROUGH PROFIT  
OR LOSS

Loans to and receivables from customers 4 356 0 0 4 356

A Fixed-income securities  1 436 0 0 1 436

Financial derivatives 88 0 0 88

Total effect on fair value through profit or loss 5 880 0 0 5 880

Total financial assets 18 335 0 0 18 335

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

AMORTISED COST

Liabilities created on issuance of securities 15 503 0 0 15 503

Total effect at amortised cost 15 503 0 0 15 503

FAIR VALUE WITH VALUE CHANGES THROUGH PROFIT  
OR LOSS

Liabilities created on issuance of securities 1 921 0 0 1 921

Financial derivatives 176 0 0 176

Total effect on fair value through profit or loss 2 097 0 0 2 097

Total financial liabilities 17 600 0 0 17 600

2.9.1.4 Reconciliation of the book value of financial assets between IAS 39 and IFRS 9  
KLP Kommunekreditt has carried out a review of the business model for the management of financial assets and an  
analysis of their cash flow characteristics. 

Please see note 2.9.2 for more detailed information on the new classification requirements under IFRS 9. 

The following table reconciles the carrying amounts for financial assets from previous measurement categories under IAS 39 
against the new measurement categories at the transition to IFRS 9 as of 1 January 2018.

NOTE A
Interest-bearing securities make up parts of KLP Kommunekreditt’s liquidity reserve. The portfolio is managed and measured on a fair value basis and 
has to be classified under IFRS 9 at fair value with changes in value through profit or loss.
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CHANGE IN PROVISIONS (FIGURES IN MNOK)

Loss provision ac-
cording to IAS 39 on 

31 December 2017

Change as a 
result of  

reclassification

Change as 
a result of 

revaluation 

Loss provision 
according to 

IFRS 9 on 1 
January 2018

Loans and receivables under IAS 39 at amortised cost under IFRS 9 0 0 0 0

Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments 0 0 0 0

Total change in loss provisions 0 0 0 0

SPECIFICATION OF LOSS PROVISIONS  (FIGURES IN MNOK) Step 1 Step 2 Step 3

Loss provision 
according to 

IFRS 9 on 1 
January 2018

Loans and receivables under IAS 39 at amortised cost under IFRS 9 0 0 0 0

Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments 0 0 0 0

Total provisions for losses  0 0 0 0

2.9.1.7 Effect of the transition to  
IFRS 9 on equity 
The impact of the transition to IFRS 9 
on equity is MNOK 0.

2.9.2 SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT  
ACCOUNTING POLICIES RELATED TO 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
The most important accounting policies 
relating to financial instruments to be 
used from 1 January 2018 are described 
below.

2.9.2.1 Recognition and derecognition
Financial assets and liabilities on the 
balance sheet on the date when KLP 
Kommunekreditt AS becomes party to 
the instrument’s contractual terms and 
conditions. Regular purchases and sales 
of investments are recognised on the 
date of the agreement. Financial assets 
are removed from the balance sheet 
when the rights to receive cash flows 
from the investment expire or when 
these rights have been transferred and 
KLP Kommunekreditt AS has generally 
transferred risk and the potential gain 
from ownership. Financial liabilities are 
derecognised when the rights to the 
contractual conditions have been fulfil-
led or cancelled or have expired. 

2.9.2.2 Classification and subsequent 
measurement  

Financial assets – principle applied 
from 1 January 2018

Financial assets are classified on first 
recognition in one of the following  
categories:
• Amortised cost
• Fair value through profit or loss  

A financial asset is measured at amorti-
sed cost if both of the following criteria 
are met and the financial asset has not 
been reported at fair value through pro-
fit or loss (the ‘fair value option’):
• The financial asset is held in a busi-

ness model whose purpose is to keep 
financial assets in order to receive 
the contractual cash flows (the ‘busi-
ness model criterion’), and 

• At certain times, the contractual 
terms of the financial asset lead to 
cash flows that only include repay-
ments and interest on the outstan-
ding principal amount (the ‘cash flow 
criterion’).

The business model criterion
KLP Kommunekreditt assesses the tar-

get with a business model, in which an 
asset is held at the portfolio level, 
because this best reflects the way the 
business is managed, and information is 
given to management. The information 
that is assessed includes:

• explicit guidelines and goals for the 
portfolio and operation of these gui-
delines in practice. In particular, if 
the management’s strategy and goal 
is to keep the asset in order to collect 
the contractual cash flows, maintain 
a specific interest profile, and match 
duration between financial assets 
and the corresponding financial lia-
bilities used to finance these assets or 
realise cash flows through the sale of 
the assets:

• how the return on the portfolio is as-
sessed and reported to management;

• the risks that affect the performance 
of the business model (and the finan-
cial assets held within this business 
model) and how these risks are ma-
naged;

• how the managers are compensated, 
e.g. whether the compensation is ba-
sed on the fair value of the managed 
assets or the total contractual cash 
flows, and

2.9.1.5 Reconciliation of loss provisions between IAS 39 and IFRS 9 
The following table shows a reconciliation between the loan loss provisions measured according to the IAS 39 ‘incurred loss’ 
model against the IFRS 9 expected loss model at 1 January 2018.

 2.9.1.6 Distribution of loss provisions per step (1 January 2018)
The table below shows the loss provisions, broken down into the different steps at the transition to IFRS 9.



  Annual Report 2017  |  Notes    30KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS  

• frequency, volume and date of sale 
in previous periods, the reasons 
for such sales and expectations of 
future sales activity. Information 
about the sales activities is not 
however assessed in isolation, but 
as part of an overall assessment of 
how the Company’s stated goals for 
managing the financial assets are 
achieved and how the cash flows are 
realised.

Assessment of the business model is 
based on reasonable future scenarios 
without regard to ‘worst case’ or ‘stress 
case’ scenarios. If cash flows after ini-
tial recognition are realised in a way 
that is different from the Company’s 
original expectations, the classification 
of the remaining financial assets in the 
relevant business model does not 
change, but the information is incorpo-
rated into the assessment of the newly 
issued or acquired financial assets in 
the future. 

Cash flow criterion
In this evaluation the principal amount 
is defined as the fair value of the finan-
cial asset on initial recognition. ‘Inter-
est’ is defined as payment for the time 
value of money and for credit risk rela-
ted to outstanding principal in a speci-
fic period of time and for other basic 
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity 
risk and administrative expenses), as 
well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual 
cash flows are only repayments and 
interest on the outstanding principal 
amount, KLP Kommunekreditt AS 
considers the contractual terms of the 
instrument. This includes assessing 
whether the financial asset contains a 
contractual clause that can change the 
date or the amount of the contractual 
cash flows so that it will not meet this 
condition. In assessing this the Com-
pany considers: 

• contingent events that would chan-
ge the amount and the date of the 
cash flows;

• influence on functions;
• advance payments and extended 

terms

• terms that limit the Company’s 
claim to cash flows from specific 
assets (e.g. ‘nonrecourse asset ar-
rangements’)

• terms that change the assessment of 
the time value of money - e.g.  
periodic resetting of interest rates.

All other financial assets are measured 
at fair value with changes in value 
through profit/loss, i.e.
• assets with contractual cash flows 

that do not meet the cash flow crite-
rion; and/or

• assets held in a different business 
model than ‘held to collect contrac-
tual cash flows’; or 

• assets designated at fair value 
through profit or loss (the ‘fair value 
option’).

KLP Kommunekreditt AS may designate 
a debt instrument that meets the  
criteria to be measured at amortised 
cost to be reported at fair value through 
profit or loss if this eliminates or  
significantly reduces inconsistencies in 
measurement (an ‘accounting  
mismatch’). This option is also  
applicable under IAS 39. 

Financial assets – principle applied 
before 1 January 2018

Financial assets are classified on initial 
recognition in one of the following 
categories: 

Financial assets: 
- Financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss
- Lending and receivables recognised 

at amortised cost

Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss
Within this category it may be manda-
tory or chosen to recognise attribution 
at fair value with value changes 
through profit or loss. The first cate-
gory includes KLP Kommunekreditt’s 
financial derivatives, unless they are 
part of a hedge. The second category 
encompasses financial assets that have 
been designated at fair value through 
profit or loss (the ‘fair value option’). 
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Classification according to IAS 39 Classification according to IFRS 9

Loans to and receivables from credit institutions Amortised cost (loans and receivables) Amortised cost

Loans to and receivables from customers Amortised cost (loans and receivables) Amortised cost

Fair value through profit or loss  
(hedging) Fair value through profit or loss 

Fixed-income securities Fair value through profit or loss (FVO) Fair value through profit or loss

Financial derivatives (assets) Fair value through profit or loss Fair value through profit or loss

Liabilities created on issuance of securities Amortised cost Amortised cost

Fair value through profit or loss  
(hedging) Fair value through profit or loss 

Financial derivatives (liabilities) Fair value through profit or loss Fair value through profit or loss

As can be seen from the table, there are no significant changes in presentation, classification and measurement of financial 
assets or financial liabilities.

PRESENTATION, CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT IN THE BALANCE SHEET AND THE INCOME STATEMENT 
The table below shows and compares the presentation, classification and subsequent measurement of each balance sheet 
item under IAS 39 (before 1 January 2018) and under IFRS 9 (after 1 January 2018).

Lending and receivables recognised at 
amortised cost
Loans and receivables are financial 
assets that are not derivatives and have 
fixed or determinable payments and are 
not traded on an active market. The 
category includes loans and receivables 
as well as bonds that are not defined as 
assets valued at fair value through profit 
or loss.

Financial liabilities  
Under both IAS 39 and IFRS 9, financial 
liabilities classified as [later] are  
measured at amortised cost, except for:
• Financial liabilities for fair value 

through profit or loss: This classifica-
tion applies to derivatives and financial 
liabilities designated as such upon 
initial recognition. The Company has 
designated certain liabilities at fair 
value through the income statement, 
because this reduces or eliminates 

inconsistencies in measurement  
(‘accounting mismatches’) 

• Financial guarantees and loan  
commitments

Other financial liabilities recognised at 
amortised cost:
The category includes other financial 
liabilities not designated as liabilities 
measured at fair value through profit  
or loss.
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NOTE 4  Segment information

KLP Kommunekreditt has no division of its income by products or services. The Company has only the public sector market 
segment  and offers only loans to its customers. The Company has only Norwegian customers. The Company has no external 
customers representing more than 10 per cent of the Company’s total operating income. 

NOTE 3  Important accounting estimates and valuations

The Company’s balance sheet principally 
comprises loans to local government 
and enterprises with local government 
guarantee, as well as covered bonds 
issued. These items are valued in the 
accounts at amortized cost, with the 
exception of borrowing and lending 
with fixed interest rates which are 
valued at fair value in accordance with 
the rules on fair value hedging. This 
means that the accounting value of the 
hedging object (fixed interest borrowing 

and lending) is changed when the  
market interest rate changes. The credit 
spread is locked at the commencement 
date, so the market’s pricing of credit is 
not reflected in book value. This is 
because the credit element is not  
hedged.

The risk of credit loss is considered very 
low and there is very little probability 
credit loss will occur in the local govern-
ment lending portfolio.

During the year the Company has 
in vested surplus liquidity in fixed-
income securities. These were initially 
recognized in the statement of financial 
position at fair value. The securities in 
the portfolio are classified in the category 
“financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss” as they are managed, and 
their earnings are valued on the basis of 
fair value. The principles for calculating 
the fair value of the various instruments 
are described in Note 6.

NOTE 5  Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments 

NOK THOUSANDS
01.01.2017
-31.12.2017

01.01.2016
-31.12.2016

Net gain/(loss) on fixed-income securities 4 230 15 320

Net gain/(loss) financial derivatives and realized amortization linked to lending 0 1 867

Net gain/(loss) financial derivatives and realized repurchase of own debt -9 236 -13 118

Total -5 006 4 070
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NOTE 6  Categories of financial instruments

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

NOK THOUSANDS Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE HELD FOR TRADING

Fixed-income securities  1 436 406  1 436 406  1 723 589  1 723 589 

Total financial assets at fair value held for trading  1 436 406  1 436 406  1 723 589  1 723 589 

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE USED FOR HEDGING

Financial derivatives  87 847  87 847  107 927  107 927 

Lending to Norwegian municipalities  4 355 849  4 396 440  5 164 845  5 186 458 

Total financial assets at fair value used for hedging  4 443 696  4 484 287  5 272 772  5 294 385 

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

Loans to and receivables from credit institutions  489 485  489 485  414 803  414 803 

Lending to Norwegian municipalities  11 965 602  11 961 754  12 081 008  12 071 700 

Total financial assets at amortized cost  12 455 087  12 451 239  12 495 811  12 486 503 

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS  18 335 189  18 371 932  19 492 172  19 504 477 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE USED FOR HEDGING

Covered bonds issued  1 921 041  1 945 028  1 744 658  1 748 349 

Financial derivatives  176 243  176 243  240 602  240 602 

Total financial liabilities at fair value used for hedging  2 097 284  2 121 271  1 985 260  1 988 951 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTIZED COST

Liabilities to credit institutions  275 170  275 170  1 170 823  1 170 823 

Covered bonds issued  15 227 691  15 314 224  15 597 884  15 980 849 

Total financial liabilities at amortized cost  15 502 861  15 589 394  16 768 707  17 151 672 

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  17 600 145  17 710 665  18 753 967  19 140 623 

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

GAIN/LOSS FAIR VALUE HEDGING

On the hedging object -35 916 -84 649

On the hedged item attributable to hedged risk 35 916 84 649

GAIN AND LOSS IN FAIR VALUE HEDGING 0 0

Fair value should be a representative 
price based on what a corresponding 
asset or liability would have been traded 
for at normal market terms and condi-
tions. A financial instrument is conside-
red as listed in an active market if listed 
prices are simply and regularly available 
from a stock market, dealer, broker, 
industry group, price-setting service or 
regulatory authority, and these prices 
represent actual and regularly occurring 

transactions at arm’s length. If the mar-
ket for the security is not active, or the 
security is not listed on a stock market 
or similar, the Group uses valuation 
techniques to set fair value. These are 
based for example on information on 
recently completed transactions carried 
out on business terms and conditions, 
reference to trading in similar instru-
ments and pricing using externally  
collected yield curves and yield spread 

curves. As far as possible the estimates 
are based on externally observable  
market data and rarely on company-
specific information.    
    
THE DIFFERENT FINANCIAL  
INSTRUMENTS ARE THUS PRICED IN 
THE FOLLOWING WAY:   
Fixed-income securities - government
Bloomberg is used as a source for  
pricing Norwegian government bonds. 
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It is Oslo Børs (Oslo Stock Exchange) 
that provides the price (via Bloomberg). 
The prices are compared with the prices 
from Reuters to revaeal any errors.  
    
Fixed-income securities - other than 
government
Norwegian fixed-income securities 
except government are generally priced 
using prices from Nordic Bond Pricing. 
Those securities that are not included  
in Nordic Bond Pricing are priced  
theoretically. In theoretical price is 
based on the assumed present value on 
the sale of the position. A zero-coupon 
curve is used for discounting. The zero-
coupon curve is asjusted upwards by 
means of a credit spread, which is to 
take account of the risk the bond 
entails. The credit spread is calculated 
on the basis of a spread curve taking 
account of the duration of the bond. 
Nordic Bond Pricing is the mainsource 
of spread curves. They provide com-
pany-specific curves for Norwegian 
saving banks, municipalities and 
energy. Saving banks have various 

spread curves based on total assets. For 
companies where Nordic Bond Pricing 
do not deliver spread curves, the Group 
use spread curves from three Norwegian 
banks. When spread curves are availa-
ble from more than one of these banks, 
an equal-weighted average is used.
  
Financial derivatives   
Interest rate swaps are valued based on 
the applicable swap curve at the time of 
valuation. Derivative contracts are to be 
used only to hedge balance amounts 
and to enable payments obligations to 
be met. Derivative contracts may be 
struck only with counterparties with 
high credit quality.   

Fair value of loans to Norwegian local 
administrations 
Fair value of lending without fixed inte-
rest rates is considered virtually the 
same as book value since the contract 
terms are continuously changed in step 
with market interest rates. Fair value of 
fixedrate loans is calculated by discoun-
ting contracual cash flows by the  

marked rate including a relevant risk-
margin on the reporting date.  
 
Fair value of loans to and receivables 
from credit institutions
All receivables from credit institutions 
(bank deposits) are at variable interest 
rates. Fair value of these is considered 
virtually the same as book value since 
the contract terms are continuously 
changed in step with market interest 
rates.
  
Fair value of liabilities to credit 
institutions 
These transactions are valued using a 
valuation model, including relevant  
credit spread adjustments obtained 
from the market.    
  
Liabilities created on issuance of  
securities  
Fair value in this category is determined 
on the basis of internal valuation 
models based on external observable 
data.      
   

NOTE 6  Categories of financial instruments - cont.

NOTE 7  Fair value hierarchy 

31.12.2017 
NOK THOUSANDS Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ASSETS BOOKED AT FAIR VALUE

ASSETS BOOKED AT FAIR VALUE

Fixed-income securities 19 985 1 416 421 0 1 436 406 

Financial derivatives 0 87 847 0 87 847 

Total assets at fair value 19 985 1 504 268 0 1 524 253 

LIABILITIES BOOKED AT FAIR VALUE

Financial derivatives (liabilities) 0  176 243 0  176 243 

Total financial liabilities at fair value 0 176 243 0 176 243 

31.12.2016 
NOK THOUSANDS Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FINANSIELLE EIENDELER TIL VIRKELIG VERDI HOLDT FOR OMSETNING

ASSETS BOOKED AT FAIR VALUE

Fixed-income securities 49 884 1 673 705 0 1 723 589 

Financial derivatives 0 107 927 0 107 927 

Total assets at fair value 49 884 1 781 632 0 1 831 516 

LIABILITIES BOOKED AT FAIR VALUE

Financial derivatives (liabilities) 0  240 602 0  240 602 

Total financial liabilities at fair value 0 240 602 0 240 602 
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NOTE 7  Fair value hierarchy - cont.

Fair value should be a representative 
price based on what a corresponding 
asset or liability would have been traded 
for at normal market terms and condi-
tions. Highest quality in regard to fair 
value is based on listed prices in an 
active market. A financial instrument is 
considered as listed in an active market 
if listed prices are simply and regularly 
available from a stock market, dealer, 
broker, industry group, price-setting 
service or regulatory authority, and 
these prices represent actual and  
regularly occurring transactions at arm’s 
length. 

LEVEL 1: 
Instruments in this level obtain fair 
value from listed prices in an active 
market for identical assets or liabilities 
that the entity has access to at the repor-
ting date. Example instruments at Level 
1 are stock market listed securities.

LEVEL 2: 
Instruments in this level obtain fair 
value from observable market data. This 
includes prices based on identical 
instruments, but where the instrument 
does not maintain a high enough  
trading frequency and is not therefore 
considered to be traded in an active 
market, as well as prices based on corre-
sponding assets and price-leading indi-
cators that can be confirmed from mar-
ket information. Example instruments 
at Level 2 are fixed-income securities 
priced on the basis of interest rate paths. 
    
LEVEL 3:
Instruments at Level 3 contain non-
observable market data or are traded in 
markets considered to be inactive. The 
price is based generally on discrete  
calculations where the actual fair value 
may deviate if the instrument were to be 
traded.   

There has been no movement between 
the levels.

Note 6 discloses the fair value of financial 
assets and financial liabilities that are 
recognized at amortized cost. Financial 
assets measured at amortized cost  
comprise lending to and due to credit 
institutions, Norwegian municipalities 
and retail customers. The stated fair 
value of these assets is determined on 
terms qualifying for level 2. 

Financial liabilities recognized at  
amortized cost consist of debt securities 
issued and deposits. The stated fair 
value of these liabilities is determined 
by methods qualifying for level 2.

NOTE 8  Fixed-income securities

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017

Debtor categories Acquisition cost Unreal. gain/loss Unreal. gain/loss Market value

Government/social security administration 19 992 -7 0 19 985

Credit enterprises 1 305 275 5 733 2 005 1 313 013

Local government administration 98 050 4 929 429 103 408

Total 1 423 317 10 655 2 434 1 436 406

Effective interest rate: 0.98%

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2016

Debtor categories Acquisition cost Unreal. gain/loss Unreal. gain/loss Market value

Government/social security administration 49 883 1 0 49 884

Credit enterprises 1 561 494 3 285 3 020 1 567 799

Local government administration 98 050 7 427 429 105 906

Total 1 709 427 10 713 3 449 1 723 589

Effective interest rate: 1.45%

Effective interest is calculated as a yield-to-maturity, i.e. it is the constant interest rate level at which one may discount all 
the future cash flows from the securities to obtain the securities’ total market value.
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NOTE 9  Financial derivatives  

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

NOK THOUSANDS
Nominal 
amount Fair value

Nominal 
amount Fair value

Derivatives related to borrowing 1 250 000 71 648 1 065 000 84 670

Derivatives related to lending 827 109 16 199 1 292 583 23 257

Total assets 2 077 109 87 847 2 357 583 107 927

Derivatives related to borrowing 600 000 -3 899 600 000 -7 930

Derivatives related to lending 3 560 430 -169 392 3 901 602 -227 265

Derivatives related to investments 100 000 -2 952 100 000 -5 408

Total liabilities 4 260 430 -176 243 4 601 602 -240 602

Interest rate agreements are used to correct for imbalances between the Company's lending and borrowing in regard to  
interest rate exposure. All the agreements entered into are hedging transactions. The value change from the effective part of 
the hedging instrument is compared with the value change for the hedged risk of the hedged objects.

Interest rate swaps are agreements on exchange of interest rate terms in a future period. They do not cover exchange of  
principal.       

NOTE 10  Net interest income  

NOK THOUSANDS
01.01.2017
-31.12.2017

01.01.2016
-31.12.2016

Interest on loans to and receivables from credit institutions 4 282 4 214

Interest on lending to customers 376 761 387 482

Interest on securities 22 683 45 869

Total interest income 403 726 437 565

Interest on debt to KLP Banken AS -7 303 -37 215

Interest on debt to credit institutions -316 910 -332 186

Amortization of premium/discount on covered bonds 2 622 -129

Total interest costs -321 591 -369 530

NET INTEREST INCOME 82 135 68 035
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NOTE 11  Lending and receivables

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

LOANS TO AND RECEIVABLES FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Bank deposits 489 485 414 803

Loans to and receivables from credit institutions 489 485 414 803

LOANS TO AND RECEIVABLES FROM CUSTOMERS

Principal on lending 16 131 498 17 006 131

Fair value hedging 138 756 186 640

Premium/discount -14 503 -19 032

Accrued interest 65 700 72 115

Loans to and receivables from customers 16 321 451 17 245 853

All lending comprises loans to, or loans guaranteed by, Norwegian municipalities and county administrations, including loans 
to local government enterprises and intermunicipal companies (public sector loans). Guarantees are of the ordinary guarantor 
type covering both repayments and interest.

NOTE 12  Financial risk management

ORGANISATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT  
KLP Kommunekreditt AS is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of KLP Banken AS. 
The Board of Directors has established 
a risk management framework aimed at 
ensuring that risks are identified,  
analysed and subjected to management 
using policies, limits, procedures and 
instructions. The Board has adopted 
risk policies covering the key individual 
risks as well as an overarching risk policy 
that covers principles, organisation,  
limits etc. for the bank’s total risk. The 

risk policies are of an overarching nature 
and are complemented by procedures, 
guidelines and instructions laid down at 
the senior management level. The policies 
state which departments are responsible 
for handling the various risks and also 
cover the establishment of a separate 
risk control function. One purpose of 
the risk control function is to check that 
the risk policies and other guidelines for 
risk management are being followed. 
This function is carried out by the Risk 
Analysis and Control Department, which 

is responsible for preparing periodic risk 
reports to senior management and the 
Board as well is reporting in the event of 
breaches of policies or guidelines. The 
Department, which has an independent 
role in relation to other departments, 
also has other tasks associated with the 
Company’s risk management. The 
responsibility for the operational  
direction of the Company’s liquidity 
risk, exchange-rate risk and interest rate 
risk lies with the Finance Department.

NOTE 13  Credit risk

Credit risk is understood here to mean the 
risk of loss associated with loan customers, 
counterparties in derivatives, issuers of 
securities and other counterparties being 
unable or unwilling to settle at the agreed 
time and in accordance with written 
contracts, and the securities established 
not covering the outstanding demand.

KLP Kommunekreditt AS provides loans 
to, or loans guaranteed by, Norwegian 
municipalities and county authorities, 
including loans to local government 
enterprises and inter-authority companies 
(public sector loans). Guarantees are 
payable on demand.

13.1 CONTROL AND LIMITATION OF 
CREDIT RISK 
The Board has determined a credit policy 

that contains overarching guidelines, 
requirements and limits associated with 
credit risk. The policy lays down that the 
bank is to have a low credit risk profile 
and includes limits on types of lending 
and principles for organisation and 
operation of the Company’s lending 
activity. The policy also includes an 
overall mandate structure for lending 
and other counterparty exposure. 
The mandates are linked to Board-
determined limits for a large number  
of the Company’s individual borrowers 
and these limits derive from a risk  
classification in which the individual 
borrowers are assigned a risk class 
based on a set of fixed criteria. Further-
more requirements are set for reporting 
to the Board on usage of the limits. 
Credit risk associated with issuers of 

securities, derivative counterparties and 
other counterparties in the financial 
area is also limited by Board-deter-
mined limits on individual counter-
parties. These limits are based on the 
counterparty’s solvency and other 
assessments of the counterparties’ 
creditworthiness.

In processing all new loan applications 
checks are made on whether the  
customer’s credit limits are larger than 
the total of the loan amounts applied for 
and current lending. In the credit policy 
described above, requirements are set 
for reporting to the Board on usage of 
the limits. Any exceeding of the limits is 
to be reported to the Company’s Board 
regardless.
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NOTE 13  Credit risk - cont.

13.2 LOANS ACCORDING TO TYPE OF SECURITY/EXPOSURE (PRINCIPAL)

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Lending to municipalities and county administrations  13 939 096  14 637 875 

Lending with municipal/county administration guarantee  2 192 402  2 368 255 

Total  16 131 498  17 006 131 

Sums falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period  15 363 352  16 092 557 

The Company also invests in securities issued by municipalities and county administrations and will in addition have credit 
risk exposure in the form of “additional collateral”. The additional collateral can amount up to 20 percent of the cover.  
In accordance with the Company’s internal guidelines the additional collateral may be in the form of deposits in banks  
satisfying minimum rating requirements as well as covered bonds issued by Norwegian credit enterprises.

CREDIT QUALITY OF SECURITIES, BANK DEPOSITS AND DERIVATIVES
Securities with external credit rating (Moody’s)

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

AAA  1 423 000  1 709 000 

Deposits in banks grouped by external credit assessment (Moody’s)

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Aa1-Aa3  195 856  197 762 

A1-A3  293 629  217 041 

Baa1  -    -   

Total  489 485  414 803 

The Company may also be exposed to credit risk as a result of derivative agreements struck. The purpose of such agreements 
is to reduce risks arising as a result of the Company’s borrowing and lending activities. The Company’s internal guidelines 
specify creditworthiness requirements for derivative counterparties. All derivative agreements are entered into with counter-
parties with a minimum A1 rating (Moody’s). 
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NOTE 13  Credit risk - cont.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Loans to and receivables from credit institutions  489 485  414 803 

Loans to and receivables from customers  16 197 199  17 078 246 

Fixed-income securities  1 436 406  1 723 589 

Financial derivatives  87 847  107 927 

TOTAL  18 210 937  19 324 565 

13.4 LOANS FALLEN DUE OR WRITTEN DOWN
The Company has not incurred losses on lending. The company considers all receivables to be satisfactorily secured. 

Loans fallen due or written down

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Principal on loans with payments with 7-30 days’ default 17 764 28 331 

Principal on loans with payments with 31-90 days’ default 0 49 391 

Principal on loans with payments with more than 90 days’ default 0 0 

Total loans fallen due 17 764 77 722 

Relevant security or guarantees 17 764 77 722 

Lending that has been written down  -    -   

13.5 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The Company’s lending is in its entirety linked to public sector financing and the portfolio thus has high concentration against 
one single sector. The underlying credit risk against this sector is however so low that it is hardly possible to reduce this  
concentration without increasing total risk in the portfolio. The concentration against the Norwegian public sector is thus 
considered not to be a risk challenge.  
  
The concentration against individual borrowers is limited by individual Board-set limits. KLP Kommunekreditt AS’s largest 
exposure as at 31 December 2017 was about 3.6 per cent of the Company’s total lending.  
  

13.3 MAXIMUM EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK 
KLP Kommunekreditt AS measures maximum exposure as principal and accrued interest. Security in cash or securities is  
not exchanged, nor are other credit improvements carried out. The table below shows the maximum exposure for  
KLP Kommunekreditt AS.  
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NOTE 14  Market risk

Market risk is understood here as the risk 
of reduced fair value of the Company’s 
owners’ equity as a result of fluctuations 
in market prices for the Company’s 
assets and liabilities. Changes in credit 
margins are however excluded since 
this comes under the term credit risk.  

KLP Kommunekreditt AS is exposed to 
market risk as a result of the Company’s 
borrowing and lending activity and 
management of the Company’s liquidity. 
The exposure is however limited to 
interest rate risk and exchange rate risk. 
Interest rate risk arises as a result of dif-
ferences in timing of interest rate 
adjustment for the Company’s assets 
and liabilities. The risk associated with 
such imbalances is reduced by using 
derivative contracts. All borrowing is in 
Norwegian kroner. The whole of the 
lending portfolio comprises loans in NOK. 
 

NOTE 14.1 MEASUREMENT OF 
MARKET RISK
Interest rate risk is measured as change 
in value on a one percentage point 
change in all interest rates.  

NOTE 14.2  INTEREST RATE RISK
The market risk policy is the Company’s 
overarching guidelines, requirements 
and limits associated with market risk. 
The policy dictates that the market risk 
should be minimized so that the total 
market risk is low. It further states that 
the Company should not actively take 
positions that expose the Company to 
market risk. The policy also sets limits 
for interest rate risk both for the total 
interest rate risk for the infinite future 
and for rolling 12-month periods. The 
limits are set in relation to the Compa-
ny’s Tier 1 and 2 capital and the level of 
the limits should ensure that the low 
market risk profile policy is complied 

with. The operational responsibility for 
managing the Company’s market risk 
lies with the Finance Department. The 
Risk Analysis and Control Department 
reports the Company’s actual exposure 
in relation to limits in accordance with 
guidelines set by the Board.

Interest rate risk arises because the 
fixed interest periods for assets and lia-
bilities are not the same. The gap in the 
table below shows the difference 
between assets and liabilities that can 
be interest-adjusted within the given 
time intervals. The repricing date shows 
the time to the next agreed interest 
adjustment date. Floating-rate loans 
and cash, and receivables from credit 
institutions, fall into the time interval up 
to one month, while fixed-interest 
loans, securities and debt fall into the 
time interval for which interest adjust-
ment has been agreed. 

INTEREST-RATE RISK KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS
Repricing dates for interest-bearing assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017

NOK THOUSANDS
Total

Principal
Up to 
1 mth

From 1 mth 
to 3 mths

From 
3 mths 

to 12 mths
From 1 year

to 5 years 
Over 

5 years
Utlån 16 131 498 9 014 980 2 577 702 1 299 585 2 748 740 490 491 

Lending 16 131 498 9 014 980 2 577 702 1 299 585 2 748 740 490 491 

Securities 1 423 000 225 000 1 098 000 100 000 0 0 

Cash and receivables from credit institutions 489 485 489 485 0 0 0 0 

Total 18 043 983 9 729 465 3 675 702 1 399 585 2 748 740 490 491 

Liabilities created on issuance of securities 17 046 000 4 000 000 11 196 000 0 1 350 000 500 000 

Liabilities to financial institutions 275 000 275 000 0 0 0 0 

Total 17 321 000 4 275 000 11 196 000 0 1 350 000 500 000 

Gap 722 983 5 454 465 -7 520 298 1 399 585 1 398 740 -9 509 

Financial derivatives 0 174 498 2 278 137 -916 120 -1 318 778 -217 737 

Net gap  722 983  5 628 963  -5 242 161  483 465  79 962  -227 246 
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NOTE 14  Market risk - cont.

Repricing dates for interest-bearing assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016

NOK THOUSANDS
Total

Principal
Up to 
1 mth

From 1 mth 
to 3 mths

From 
3 mths

to 12 mths
From 1 year

to 5 years 
Over 

5 years
Hovedstol" "Inntil 

Lending 17 006 131 12 201 466 75 847 704 917 3 071 540 952 361 

Securities 1 709 000 394 000 1 165 000 50 000 100 000 0 

Cash and receivables from credit institutions 414 803 414 803 0 0 0 0

Total 19 129 934 13 010 269 1 240 847 754 917 3 171 540 952 361 

Liabilities created on issuance of securities 17 230 000 4 000 000 11 565 000 315 000 1 350 000 0 

Liabilities to financial institutions 1 170 000 1 170 000 0 0 0 0 

Total 18 400 000 5 170 000 11 565 000 315 000 1 350 000 0 

Gap 729 934 7 840 269 -10 324 153 439 917 1 821 540 952 361 

Financial derivatives 0 191 365 3 227 053 -439 770 -1 748 843 -1 229 806 

Net gap  729 934  8 031 635  -7 097 100  147  72 697  -277 445 

The Company’s interest rate sensitivity as at 31 December 2017 (2016), measured as value change in the event of one percen-
tage point change in all interest rates, was NOK 8.3 million (6.3).       

14.3 EXCHANGE RATE RISK
As at 31 December 2017 the Company had no borrowing in foreign currency. 

NOTE 15  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk means the risk that the 
Company does not manage to meet its 
obligations and/or finance increases in 
its assets without substantial additional 
costs arising in the form of price falls in 
assets that must be realized, or in the 
form of more costly financing.   
 

15.1 MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK
«The management of KLP Kommune-
kreditt’s liquidity risk must be viewed in 
the context of the management of the 
liquidity risk in the KLP Banken Group.  
A liquidity policy is established for the 
Group containing principles, guidelines, 

requirements and limits that apply to 
the management of the liquidity risk. 
The policy states that the Group is to 
have a moderate liquidity risk profile 
and various requirements and limits 
have been set to achieve this, including 
targets for deposit cover, limits for 
re financing requirements for various 
time periods and requirements for  
liquidity buffers.  

The Board has further adopted an emer-
gency plan for liquidity crises as part of 
the liquidity policy. In addition to the 
requirements at Group level, separate 
specific requirements have been estab-

lished for KLP Kommunekreditt AS, 
including requirements for continually 
positive cash flows, limits for refinan-
cing requirements and requirements for 
liquidity reserves and drawing rights. 
The operational responsibility for  
managing the Company’s liquidity risk 
lies with the Finance Department.  

The Risk Analysis and Control  
Department reports the Company’s 
actual exposure in relation to limits in 
accordance with guidelines set by the 
Board.»     
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NOTE 15  Liquidity risk - cont.

15.2 MATURITY ANALYSIS
The tables below show the maturity analysis of the Company’s assets and liabilities including stipulated interest rates.   
     

LIQUIDITY RISK KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS
Maturity analysis for assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017

NOK THOUSANDS Total
Un-

defined
Up to  
1 mth

From 1 mth 
to 3 mths

From  
3 mths 

to 12 mths
From 1 year 

to 5 years
Over  

5 years
Hovedstol" "Inntil 

Lending 20 164 563 0  48 362  183 798  876 205  4 420 020  14 636 177 

Securities 1 470 064 0 3 764 22 925 147 255 1 275 973 20 147 

Receivables from credit institutions 489 485 0 489 485 0 0 0 0 

Total 22 124 112 0 541 611 206 723 1 023 460 5 695 993 14 656 324

Liabilities created on issuance of securities 17 842 995 0 21 773 25 008 1 289 594 15 946 620 560 000

Financial derivatives 1 370 141 0 1 581 10 637 118 670 1 203 222 36 032

Liabilities to credit institutions 279 403 0 320 590 2 752 275 741 0

Total 19 492 539 0 23 674 36 236 1 411 016 17 425 582 596 032

Net cash flow 2 631 573 0 517 937 170 487 -387 555 -11 729 589 14 060 293

Maturity analysis for assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016

NOK THOUSANDS Total
Un-

defined
Up to  
1 mth

From 1 mth 
to 3 mths

From  
3 mths 

to 12 mths
From 1 year 

to 5 years
Over  

5 years
Hovedstol" "Inntil 

Lending 21 648 076 0  55 400  282 615  878 208  4 661 789  15 770 064 

Securities 1 772 455 0 1 465 4 815 402 821 1 363 355 0 

Receivables from credit institutions 414 803 0 414 803 0 0 0 0 

Total 23 835 334 0 471 668 287 430 1 281 029 6 025 144 15 770 064

Liabilities created on issuance of securities 18 152 471 0 26 847 31 800 1 138 949 16 954 875 0

Financial derivatives 171 265 0 3 363 11 630 33 554 109 040 13 677

Liabilities to credit institutions 1 205 980 0 1 598 2 809 14 673 1 186 900 0

Total 19 529 716 0 31 808 46 239 1 187 176 18 250 816 13 677

Net cash flow 4 305 618 0 439 860 241 191 93 853 -12 225 672 15 756 387

A 15-month internal loan of NOK 275 Million has been provided from KLP Banken AS to KLP Kommunekreditt AS, which is 
defined as “Liabilities to credit institutions”. This loan is rolled over currently every third month and the interest rate is set 
each month.
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NOTE 16  Salary and obligations to senior management

2017
NOK THOUSANDS Paid from KLP Kommunekreditt AS Paid from another company in the same group

Salaries, 
fees etc.

Other
benefits

Annual 
pension ac-
cumulation Loans

Salaries, 
fees etc.

Other
benefits

Annual 
pension ac-
cumulation Loans

Interest rate as 
at 31.12.2017

Repayment 
plan1)

SENIOR EMPLOYEES

Carl Steinar Lous, 
Department Manager Public 
Marked/ Managing Director - - - - 1 234 24 369 2 376 2,11 A20/A31

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sverre Thornes, Chair - - - - 3 900 205 1 457 13 556 2.10-2.35 A45/A47

Aage E. Schaanning - - - - 3 413 167 1 223 5 991 2.10 HC

Ingrid Aune 11 - - - 68 - - - - -

Aud Norunn Strand 37 - - - - - - 1 321 2.35 HC

Toril Lahnstein 37 - - - - - - - - -

Eva M. Salvesen2) 11 - - - 71 - - - - -

EMPLOYEES

Total loans to employees of KLP Kommunekreditt 2 376 - -

2016
NOK THOUSANDS Paid from KLP Kommunekreditt AS Paid from another company in the same group

Salaries, 
fees etc.

Other
benefits

Annual 
pension ac-
cumulation Loans

Salaries, 
fees etc.

Other
benefits

Annual 
pension ac-
cumulation Loans

Interest rate as 
at 31.12.2016

Repayment 
plan1)

SENIOR EMPLOYEES 
Christopher A. Steen, 
Managing Director to November 
24th2,4) - - - - 886 17 159 2 899 1.95-2.20 A31/42

Carl Steinar Lous, Managing  
Director from November 24th4) - - - - 354 103 90 2 535 1.95 A31

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Sverre Thornes, Chair - - - - 3 807 206 1 413 11 840 1.95-2.35 A46

Aage E. Schaanning - - - - 3 338 164 1 193 5 680 1.95 HC  

Toril Lahnstein 72 - - - - - - - - -

Eva M. Salvesen 22 - - - 130 - - - - -

EMPLOYEES

Total loans to employees of KLP Kommunekreditt 5 434 - -

1) S= Serial loan, A= Annuity loan, last payment, HC=Home Credit. 2) The individual has stepped down from the appointment during the year. 3) Benefits are shown for the 
period in which each person held the position of Managing Director of KLP Kommunekreditt. 4) Benefits are shown for the period in which Mr Carl Steinar Lous was employed as 
Department Manager public market in the KLP Banken, from 1 October.  

The KLP Board of Directors has laid down 
principles and guidelines for remuneration 
that apply for the entire Group and set up a 
remuneration committee as a sub-
committee of the Board. 

The committee reports on and carries out 
checks that the remuneration schemes in 
the Group are in line with the Board’s 
principles and guidelines. 

Managing director is a contracted-in 
function from the parent company, KLP 
Banken AS, and the individual receives no 
benefits directly from KLP Kommune-

kreditt AS for the appointment. KLP 
Kommunekreditt AS refunds that part of 
the benefits associated with the role as 
Managing Director.  The Managing 
Director has no agreement on 
performance pay (bonus) or guaranteed 
salary on termination. The pensionable 
age is 70 years.   

There are no obligations to provide the 
Chair of the Board of Directors special 
consideration or other benefits on 
termination or change in employment 
contract or appointment.  

Directors’ fees are set by the General 
Assembly.  Board members employed in 
the KLP Group, not having been elected by 
and from the employees, do not receive a 
fee for the Board appointment. Benefits in 
addition to Directors’ fees for Board 
members employed in the KLP Group are 
stated only if they are included in the 
senior management group employed in the 
KLP Group. This also applies to any loans 
they may have with the Group. 
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NOTE 17  Liabilities to credit institutions

31.12.2017
NOK THOUSANDS Currency Interest Due date Nominal

Accrued  
interest Book value

Hovedstol" "Inntil 

Debt to KLP Banken AS NOK Fixed 15.03.2019 275 000 170 275 170

Total liabilities to credit institutions 275 000 170 275 170

Interest rate on debt to credit institutions at the reporting date 1.31 %

The interest rate is calculated as a weighted average of the act/360 basis.

31.12.2016
NOK THOUSANDS Currency Interest Due date Nominal

Accrued  
interest Book value

Hovedstol" "Inntil 

Debt to KLP Banken AS NOK Fixed 15.03.2018 1 170 000 824 1 170 823

Total liabilities to credit institutions 1 170 000 824 1 170 823

Interest rate on debt to credit institutions at the reporting date 1.49 %

The interest rate is calculated as a weighted average of the act/360 basis. 

NOTE 18  Securities liabilities - stock exchange listed covered bonds

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Bonds, nominal value 17 946 000 19 985 000

Revaluations 61 593 67 646

Accrued interest 41 139 44 896

Own funds, nominal value -900 000 -2 755 000

Total liabilities created on issuance of securities 17 148 732 17 342 542

Interest rate on borrowings through the issuance of securities at the reporting date. 1.24 % 1.52 %

The interest rate is calculated as a weighted average of the act/360 basis. It includes interest rate hedges and amortization costs.

NOK THOUSANDS
Balance 

31.12.2016 Issued

Fallen due/
redeemed

Repurchased
Others

changes
Balance 

31.12.2017

CHANGE IN LIABILITIES CREATED ON ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES

Bonds, nominal value 19 985 000 4 500 000 -6 539 000 0 17 946 000

Revaluations 67 646 0 0 -6 053 61 593

Accrued interest 44 896 0 0 -3 757 41 139

Own funds, nominal value -2 755 000 0 1 855 000 0 -900 000

Total liabilities created on issuance of securities 17 342 542 4 500 000 -4 684 000 -9 810 17 148 732
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NOTE 19  Presentation of assets and liabilities subject to net settlement

31.12.2017
NOK THOUSANDS

Related sums that are not  
presented net

Gross financial  
assets/liabilities

Gross assets/liabilities 
presented net Book value

Financial  
instruments

 Security in 
cash

Net  
value

ASSETS

Financial derivatives 87 847 0 87 847 -87 847 0 0

Total 87 847 0 87 847 -87 847 0 0

LIABILITIES

Financial derivatives 176 243 0 176 243 -87 847 0 88 396

Total 176 243 0 176 243 -87 847 0 88 396

31.12.2016
NOK THOUSANDS

Related sums that are not  
presented net

Gross financial  
assets/liabilities

Gross assets/liabilities 
presented net Book value

Financial  
instruments

 Security in 
cash

Net  
value

ASSETS

Financial derivatives 107 927 0 107 927 -107 927 0 0

Total 107 927 0 107 927 -107 927 0 0

LIABILITIES

Financial derivatives 240 602 0 240 602 -107 927 0 132 675

Total 240 602 0 240 602 -107 927 0 132 675
80  -  -  -  -  - 

The purpose of this note is to show the potential effect of netting agreements on KLP Kommunekreditt AS. The note shows 
the derivative positions in the financial position statement.     
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NOTE 20  Capital adequacy

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Share capital and share premium fund 675 000 675 000

Other owners’ equity 45 939 66 864

Total owners’ equity 720 939 741 864

Adjustments due to requirements for proper valuation -1 436 0

Core capital/Tier 1 capital 719 503 741 864

Supplementary capital/Tier 2 capital 0 0

Supplementary capital/Tier 2 capital 0 0
719 503 741 864

Total own funds (eligible Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital) 719 503 741 864

Capital requirement 292 090 310 430

Surplus of own funds (eligible Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital) 427 413 431 434

CALCULATION BASIS CREDIT RISK

Institutions 116 167 117 712

Local and regional authorities 3 296 369 3 491 045

Covered bonds 131 301 156 780

Calculation basis credit risk 3 543 837 3 765 537

Credit risk 283 507 301 243

Operational risk 8 433 9 045

Credit valuation adjustment 150 142

Total capital requirement assets 292 090 310 430

Core capital adequacy ratio 19.7 % 19.1 %

Supplementary capital ratio 0.0 % 0.0 %

Capital adequacy ratio 19.7 % 19.1 %

Unweighted capital adequacy 3.9 % 3.8 %

CAPITAL REQUIREMENT AS AT 31.12.2017
Core capital/Tier 1 

capital
Supplementary 

capital/Tier 2 capital Own funds

Minimum requirement without buffers 4.5 % 3.5 % 8.0 %

Protective buffers 2.5 % 0.0 % 2.5 %

System risk buffers 3.0 % 0.0 % 3.0 %

Counter-cyclical buffers 2.0 % 0.0 % 2.0 %

Applicable capital requirements including buffers 12.0 % 3.5 % 15.5 %

Leverage ratio 3.0 % 0.0 % 3.0 %
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NOK THOUSANDS 2017 2016

Accounting income before taxes 59 878 53 198

Differences between accounting and tax income:

Reversal of value increase financial assets -33 099 -13 645

Change in differences affecting relationship between book and taxable income 31 762 1 201

Taxable income 58 541 40 754

RECONCILIATION OF DEFERRED TAX/TAX ASSETS

Deferred tax asset linked to:

Financial instruments -16 033 -24 688

Hedging of borrowing -14 884 -18 923

Premium/discount on borrowing -1 071 -720

Total deferred tax assets -31 987 - 44 331

Deferred tax linked to:

Securities 2 451 2 571

Lending to customers and credit enterprises 31 100 43 069

Total deferred tax 33 550 45 641
Utlån til kunder og kredittforetak

Net deferred tax/tax assets 1 563 1 310
Utlån til kunder og kredittforetak

Summary of tax expense for the year:

Tax charged to the income statement for previous years 253 3 056

Change in deferred tax taken to income 14 050 10 188

Total tax costs 14 303 13 245

Effective tax rate 23.9 % 24.9 %

Reconciliation of tax rate:

Accounting income before taxes  59 878  53 198 

Income taxs expense, nominal tax rate  14 371  13 300 

Income tax expense, effective tax rate  14 303  13 245 

Difference between effective and nominal tax rate  68  55 
Utlån til kunder og kredittforetak

Recognised tax relating to previous years 0 0 

Tax effects of permanent differences 0 0 

Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax  68 55 

Total  68  55 

NOTE 21  Tax
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NOTE 22  Number of FTEs and employees

KLP Kommunekreditt AS has 2 employees, but they do not receive any remuneration or other benefits from the Company. 
KLP Kommunekreditt AS buys personnel services from other companies in the KLP Group. 

NOTE 23  Other liabilities and provision for accrued costs and liabilities

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Receivables between companies in the same Group 1 558 4 110

Creditors 102 394

Other liabilities 3 4

Payable taxes 14 050 10 189

Total other liabilities 15 712 14 697

Value-added tax 23 264

Provisioned costs 309 4 131

Total accrued costs and liabilities 332 4 395

NOTE 24  Transactions with related parties 

NOK THOUSANDS
01.01.2017
-31.12.2017

01.01.2016
-31.12.2016

INCOME STATEMENT ITEMS

KLP Banken AS, interest on borrowing -7 303 -37 215

KLP Banken AS, administrative services (at cost) -14 392 -12 830

KLP Kapitalforvaltning AS, fees for services provided -211 -341

Total -21 905 -50 386

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT ITEMS

KLP Banken AS, debt to credit institutions -275 170 -1 170 823

KLP Banken AS, loan settlement 3 503 24 060

Net outstanding accounts to:

KLP Banken AS -1 296 -4 018

KLP Eiendom AS -223 0

KLP Kapitalforvaltning AS -38 -92

Total -273 225 -1 150 873

There are no direct salary costs in KLP Kommunekreditt AS. Personnel costs (administrative services) are allocated from  
KLP Banken AS.

Transactions with related parties are carried out on general market terms, with the exception of the Company’s share of  
common functions, which is allocated at cost. Allocation is based on actual use. All internal receivables are settled as they arise. 
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NOTE 25  Auditor’s fee 

NOK THOUSANDS
01.01.2017
-31.12.2017

01.01.2016
-31.12.2016

Ordinary audit 206 273

Certification services 86 182

Non-audit services 19 0

Total auditor’s fee 311 455

The sums above include VAT.

NOTE 26  Other assets

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Receivables between Group companies 3 503 24 060

Total 3 503 24 060

NOTE 27  Contingent liabilities

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Promised loans 113 972 206 936

Total contingent liabilities 113 972 206 936

These are contractual payments to borrowers that are highly likely to be paid out.

NOTE 28  Cash and cash equivalents and other loans and receivables from credit institutions

NOK THOUSANDS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Bank deposits operations 478 652 402 810

Cash 0 0

Total cash and cash equivalents (liquidity) 478 652 402 810

Bank accounts to be used for the purchase and sale of securities 10 833 11 993

Loans and receivables from credit institutions 489 485 414 803



KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS    Annual Report 2017    50

Anne Tømmerdal Kristoffersen
Employed in Banking



KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS    Annual Report 2017  |  Auditor’s Report    51



KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS    Annual Report 2017  |  Auditor’s Report    52



KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS    Annual Report 2017  |  Auditor’s Report    53



KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS    Annual Report 2017  |  Auditor’s Report    54



KLP KOMMUNEKREDITT AS
Beddingen 8
7042 Trondheim
VATIN: 994 526 944

VISITOR ADRESS, TRONDHEIM  
Beddingen 8

VISITOR ADRESS, OSLO  
Dronning Eufemias gate 10

klpbanken.no

Tel: 55 54 85 00
Fax: 73 53 38 39
klpkommunekreditt@klp.no

C
overphoto: Johner.se

D
esign: B

ardus D
esign

http://klpbanken.no
mailto:klpkommunekreditt%40klp.no%20?subject=

